REGULAR ASSEMBLY MEETING 2024-13 MINUTES DRAFT

June 17, 2024, at 7:00 PM



Assembly Chambers/Zoom Webinar

Meeting 2024-13, the Regular Meeting of the City and Borough of Juneau Assembly, held in the Assembly Chambers, was called to order at 7:02pm by Mayor Beth Weldon.

A. FLAG SALUTE

Assemblymember Bryson led the Assembly in the flag salute.

B. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Assemblymember Hughes-Skandijs provided the following land acknowledgement: "We would like to acknowledge that the City and Borough of Juneau is on unceded Tlingit land and wish to honor the indigenous people of this land. For more than ten thousand years, Alaska Native people have been and continue to be integral to the well-being of our community. We are grateful to be in this place, a part of this community, and to honor the culture, traditions, and resilience of the Tlingit people. Gunalchéesh!"

C. ROLL CALL

Assemblymembers present: Greg Smith, Alicia Hughes-Skandijs, Wade Bryson, Wáahlaal Gídaag, Paul Kelly, Ella Adkison, Mayor Beth Weldon

Assemblymembers absent: Christine Woll, Deputy Mayor Michelle Hale

Staff present: City Manager Katie Koester, Deputy City Manager Robert Barr, City Attorney Robert Palmer, Municipal Clerk Beth McEwen, Clerk Staff Kevin Allen, Airport Manager Patty Wahto, Assistant City Attorney Emily Wright, Parks and Recreation Director George Schaaf, Assistant City Attorney Sherri Layne, Assistant City Attorney Nichole Lynch

D. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

1. Legislative Citations presented by Senator Jesse Kiehl

Senator Jesse Kiehl presented Legislative Citations which were sponsored by Senator Kiehl and co-sponsored by Representatives Hannan and Story. Senator Kiehl, on behalf of the Alaska State Legislature, presented a citation to Rorie Watt, former City and Borough of Juneau City Manager, honoring his career of public service. Senator Kiehl, on behalf of the Alaska State Legislature, presented a citation to Maria Gladziszewski honoring her career of public service to both the City and Borough of Juneau and the State of Alaska.

E. MANAGER'S REQUEST FOR AGENDA CHANGES - None

F. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS (Limited to no more than 20 minutes, with each speaker limited to a length of time set by the Mayor not to exceed three minutes.)

Mark Whitman, from Douglas, spoke in opposition to the development of Telephone Hill. He said Telephone Hill was the green living emerald crowning our city and the current development plan would fill the space with concrete, glass, and aluminum. He said families, gardens, and legacies would all be removed before the true price emerged and that if the Assembly removed every trace of a living neighborhood people might believe that cubicles stacked hundreds deep are homes. He urged the Assembly to change their current plan and do nothing at all. He suggested Assemblymembers take a picnic to Telephone Hill and contemplate the island of peace and

sanity amid downtown's frenzy. He asked the Assembly to take a year of picnics before making a final decision and urged them to ultimately take no action.

Romona Wigg, a Juneau resident, requested the Assembly change CBJ Code 20.40 Commercial Passenger Vehicles from requiring six vehicles for a new transportation business to requiring one vehicle. She said this regulation has been around since the 1970s. She said she called multiple cities in Alaska and out of state and those cities only required one vehicle to start a cab company.

Tony Tengs, from downtown Juneau, spoke in opposition to development of Telephone Hill. He said he lived on Telephone Hill for 28 years. He said the Assembly had concerns about downtown Juneau having lost housing units and was using that as a rationale for developing Telephone Hill. He said there have been lots of new housing units built around town, including a new legislative housing building that had 32 units that opened this last winter, and asked if any of the new units have been taken into consideration when looking at the Assembly's goals for housing on Telephone Hill. He said the public was not invited to participate in whether or not to develop Telephone Hill and was only invited to give opinions about various types of development. He said the city should not sell its history, but if they chose to sell something so priceless maybe the Assembly should sell it for the highest price possible. He said the entire process seemed to be about the amount of money the city can make.

Shoshana Seligman, a ten-year resident of Telephone Hill, spoke in opposition to the development of Telephone Hill. She asked whose vision it was to develop Telephone Hill. She asked for fair notice to the people living there and that the city have funding in place before proceeding with a development plan. She said the city was not allowing new people to move in, creating vacancies. She gave a hypothetical situation of her housemate moving out and not being allowed to have a new one and asked if she would be required to pay additional rent. She noted that many tourists and other Juneauites come to Telephone Hill. She asked the Assembly to wait and not do any development.

Bruce Garrison, a Valley resident, spoke about concerns for Eaglecrest. He said he has skied at Eaglecrest for 61 years, is a lifetime member of the National Ski Patrol, and served on the Eaglecrest Board for eight years. His first concern was about hiring the new Eaglecrest General Manager and thought having a new General Manager in place by September was overly ambitious. His second concern was about the lack of staff for snowmaking, which has become more important over time. His third concern was about the direction of the Eaglecrest Board and asked the Assembly to choose wisely on upcoming vacant positions. Ms. Hughes-Skandijs asked a follow up about Mr. Garrison's concerns. Mr. Garrison said he was concerned about the 6% pay raise being funded by a loan from CBJ and said it was not sustainable.

Rick Harris, a Valley resident, said he applied to be on the Eaglecrest Board but would be unable to make the Assembly's scheduled meeting to review applicants. He wanted to introduce himself to the Assembly. He said he wanted to announce a potential conflict of interest in that his daughter-in-law is the Tourism Director for CBJ.

G. CONSENT AGENDA

Public Request for Consent Agenda Changes, Other than Ordinances for Introduction - None

Assembly Request for Consent Agenda Changes - None

Assembly Action

MOTION by Mr. Bryson to adopt the Consent Agenda and asked for unanimous consent. *Hearing no objection, the Consent Agenda passed by unanimous consent.*

H. Ordinances for Introduction

2. Ordinance 2024-25 An Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Bonds in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed \$12,750,000 to Finance Public Safety Communication Infrastructure within the City and Borough, and Submitting a Proposition to the Voters at the Election to Be Held Therein on October 1, 2024.

This ordinance would send one general obligation bond proposition of up to \$12.75 million for the improvement of public safety communication infrastructure, including, but not limited to, replacing the outdated communication system with a system that will be Alaska Land Mobile Radio compliant. The current system is beyond its useful life and is experiencing dead zones and limited interoperability with other agencies. The total project cost is currently estimated between \$24 and \$25 million, of which the Assembly has already appropriated \$8.7 million of general funds and sales tax. An additional \$3.5 million is secured for this project via Congressionally Directed Spending and 1% sales tax.

The Assembly requested staff introduce an ordinance to submit a proposition to the voters on the October 1, 2024, election ballot during the June 3, 2024, Committee of the Whole meeting. The Assembly Finance committee reviewed this request at its May 1, 2024, meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

3. Ordinance 2024-26 An Ordinance Authorizing the Issuance of General Obligation Bonds in the Principal Amount of Not to Exceed \$10,000,000 to Finance Wastewater Utility Infrastructure within the City and Borough, and Submitting a Proposition to the Voters at the Election to Be Held Therein on October 1, 2024.

This ordinance would send one general obligation bond proposition of up to \$10 million for the replacement of the wastewater clarifier building at the Juneau Douglas Wastewater Treatment Plant, that services Thane, Downtown, and Douglas. The total project cost is currently potentially estimated to be as high as \$14 million. Project costs exceeding the bond amount will be funded from Wastewater fund balance.

The Assembly requested staff introduce an ordinance to submit a proposition to the voters on the October 1, 2024 election ballot during the June 3, 2024 Committee of the Whole meeting. The Assembly Finance committee reviewed this request at its May 1, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

4. Ordinance 2024-23 An Ordinance Amending the Ordinance Formatting Requirements.

CBJ Code 01.20.020 governs the formatting requirements of ordinances. This housekeeping ordinance would modernize that code as follows:

- Update the enacting clause;
- Clarify that irrelevant code sections do not have to be cited in amendments;
- Update the font requirements to remove the typewriter era standards; and
- Update the codification and archiving standards to eliminate unnecessary post-adoption work.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly introduce this ordinance, refer it to the Assembly Human Resources Committee, and then schedule it for public hearing.

5. Ordinance 2024-11 An Ordinance Authorizing the Port Director to Negotiate and Execute a Lease of Alaska Tidelands Survey No. 750, for the Purpose of Waterfront Commercial Activities.

This is a new 35-year lease agreement with Trucano Family LLC. The street address of this property is 3560 N Douglas Hwy. The existing 55-year lease expires on June 29th, 2024 and was originally negotiated through the State of Alaska. This 18,469 SF parcel was appraised to have an annual fair market rent value \$11,267. The Docks & Harbors Board recommended the Assembly approve this new lease at its May 30th regular meeting.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly introduce this ordinance, refer it to the Lands, Housing and Economic Development Committee and set it for public hearing at the July 29 regular Assembly meeting.

6. Ordinance 2024-12 An Ordinance Authorizing the Port Director to Negotiate and Execute a Lease of Alaska Tidelands Survey No. 842 Tracts A&B, for the Purpose of Waterfront Commercial Activities.

This is a new 35 year lease agreement with Trucano Family LLC. The street address of this property is 3560 N Douglas Hwy. The existing 55-year lease expires on August 18th, 2026; however, Trucano Family LLC has requested to place ATS 842 and ATS 750 on the same adjustment of rental schedule. Trucano Family LLC is vacating two years of lease opportunity under this new lease agreement. This 43,865 SF parcel was appraised to have an annual fair market rent value \$20,909. The Docks & Harbors Board recommended the Assembly approve this new lease at its May 30th regular meeting.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly introduce this ordinance, refer it to the Lands, Housing and Economic Development Committee and set it for public hearing at the July 29 regular Assembly meeting.

7. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AK) An Ordinance Appropriating \$1,446,827 to the Manager for the Power Upgrades for Electric Buses Capital Improvement Project; Grant Funding Provided by the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities.

This ordinance would appropriate \$1,446,827 to the Power Upgrades for Electric Buses Capital Improvement Project (CIP). The funds would be used to purchase and install two Pantograph Chargers and supporting infrastructure at the Valley Transit Center. The chargers would provide backup charging for the Bus Barn and enable mid-route bus charging capabilities, promoting EV bus route expansion while upholding schedule availability. Grant funding is comprised of Federal Transit Administration funds passed through the Alaska Department of Transportation and Public Facilities. The local match requirement of \$160,759 is being met by previously appropriated funds in the Power Upgrades for Electric Buses CIP.

The Public Works and Facilities Committee reviewed this at its June 3, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

8. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AL) An Ordinance Transferring \$400,000 from CIP H51-113 Waterfront Seawalk to CIP P41-107 Homestead Park.

This ordinance would transfer \$400,000 from the Waterfront Seawalk CIP to the Homestead Park CIP. Homestead Park is a prime location for cruise ship passengers to view and photograph their cruise ship with Mt. Juneau, the Gastineau Channel, and downtown as the backdrop. The Homestead Park project is reconstructing failing and outdated infrastructure at the park, constructing larger viewing areas, and improving ADA accessibility. This transfer would provide funding for unanticipated cost increases resulting from the most recent project estimate. Sufficient funds will remain in the Waterfront Seawalk CIP for anticipated work in the current and next phase of the project. The Homestead Park CIP is an eligible use of marine passenger fees.

The Public Works and Facilities Committee reviewed this at its June 3, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

9. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AM) An Ordinance Appropriating \$36,712 to the Manager for the Construction Phase of the Float Pond Improvements Capital Improvement Project; Funding Provided by the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Airport Improvement Program (AIP) Grant.

The Airport has been awarded an additional \$36,712 in grant funding from the Federal Aviation Administration for the Float Pond Improvements CIP. This award will increase the previously awarded \$2,254,418 under Ordinance 2022-06(b)(N) to a total award amount of \$2,291,130. This funding would contribute toward the construction of raising the existing roadbed, introducing a drainage ditch, armoring the pond bank with rock, and reconstructing fourteen floatplane dock headwalls. The local match requirement will be provided by previously appropriated funds in the Float Pond Improvements CIP.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

10. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AN) An Ordinance Appropriating \$170,660 to the Manager for the Airport Snow Removal Equipment Building Capital Improvement Project; Funding Provided by Passenger Facility Charge Fees.

This ordinance would appropriate \$170,660 of Airport Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) fees to the Airport Snow Removal Equipment Building (SREB) CIP. The SREB CIP constructed a large open-design garage to provide heated, indoor storage space for the airport's snow removal fleet. These PFC funds will reimburse amounts that were forward funded from other sources, which is typical for PFC collections that are appropriated upon receipt.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

11. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AO) An Ordinance Appropriating \$222,066 to the Manager for the Ramp Improvement Capital Improvement Project; Funding Provided by Airport Funds.

This ordinance would appropriate \$222,066 to the Ramp Improvement CIP. This project is constructing a new remain overnight (RON) large aircraft parking ramp, rehabilitating deteriorating pavement for large and commercial aircraft parking ramps, repairing failing ramp drainage and catch basins, and upgrading ramp lighting. This appropriation will allocate local match funds for FAA grant funding.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

12. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AP) An Ordinance Appropriating \$34,367 to the Manager for the Airport Master Plan Capital Improvement Project; Funding Provided by Sales Tax Funds.

This ordinance would appropriate \$34,367 of 1% sales tax funds to the Airport Master Plan CIP. This funding will contribute toward the preparation of an updated airport master plan, which will include updates for air traffic, cargo, and passenger data and forecasts; changes to proposed aircraft servicing the airport; and layout plans for future expansion of runway, taxiway, and approach corridors. The 1% sales tax funds appropriated in this ordinance were allocated to the Airport in FY18 but weren't appropriated until federal grant match was needed. This ordinance appropriates the remaining amount from the Airport's FY18 1% sales tax allocation.

This appropriation is consistent with the intent of the 2017 1% Sales Tax initiative approved by voters in the October 3, 2017 municipal election.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends this ordinance be introduced and set for public hearing at the next regular Assembly meeting.

I. Resolutions

13. Resolution 3057(b) A Resolution Adopting Guidelines for the Manufactured Home Down Payment Assistance Program.

The Mobile Home Down Payment Assistance Program (MHDPA) was developed in 2016 to assist Juneau residents seeking to purchase a manufactured home within a manufactured home community. This program secures down payment funding for manufactured home purchases. Staff is proposing an update to the MHDPA to include the following changes:

1. Increase the match amount cap to \$20,000

2. Direct the manager to award up to \$100,000 in loans in FY25 from the Juneau Affordable Housing Fund before requesting additional budget authority from the Assembly.

3. Change the program name to Manufactured Home Down Payment Assistance Program to reflect the nomenclature more accurately for this housing type and reflect industry terminology.

This program update was given a unanimous motion of support by the Lands, Housing & Economic Development Committee on January 29, 2024.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly adopt this resolution.

14. Resolution 3063 A Resolution Deappropriating \$8,100,000 from the Manager for the Purchase of the Juneau Bone and Joint Center Property at 3220 Hospital Drive.

\$8.1 million of Bartlett Regional Hospital (BRH) fund balance was appropriated in FY23 via Ordinance 2022-06(b)(AX) for the purchase of the Juneau Bone and Joint Center property. In January 2024, the property owners notified BRH leadership that the deal would not be moving forward as they had decided to move in a different direction with the property. Although this removes one option for BRH to assume a more significant role in Orthopedics, BRH is actively pursuing other promising opportunities to improve Orthopedic services for the community. This resolution would deappropriate these funds back to BRH fund balance to support BRH operations and other strategic priorities.

The BRH Finance Committee reviewed this request at its May 10, 2024 meeting. The BRH Board of Directors and the Public Works and Facilities Committee reviewed this request at the May 28 and June 3, 2024 meetings, respectively.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly adopt this resolution.

15. Resolution 3065 A Resolution of the City and Borough of Juneau in Support of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Auke Bay Feasibility Study.

This resolution executes the CBJ support to enter into a feasibility cost sharing agreement with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers to investigate and to eventually replace the existing Statter Harbor Breakwater. The existing structure is nearly 40 years old and is in need of recapitalization. The Army Corps of Engineers is responsible for jetties, breakwaters, and groins in U.S. waters. The federal process typically includes a three-year investigative study to determine the fiscal viability of the project. It is anticipated that the study will cost up to \$4M with the local sponsor, Docks & Harbors, providing 50% of the costs. The resolution authorizes the Port Director to enter into an feasibility cost sharing agreement with the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly adopt this resolution.

J. Transfers

16. Transfer Request T-1079 A Transfer of \$7,388 from CIP F21-042 Downtown Fire Station Improvements to CIP F21-041 Downtown and Glacier Fire Stations Mechanical and Electrical Upgrades.

This request would transfer \$7,388 from the Downtown Fire Station Improvements CIP to the Downtown and Glacier Fire Stations Mechanical and Electrical Upgrades CIP. This funding would contribute toward installation of new generators and other mechanical and electrical upgrades at the Downtown and Glacier Fire Stations. Classroom renovation and kitchen design work under the Downtown Fire Station Improvements CIP is complete and the project is ready to be closed.

The Public Works and Facilities Committee reviewed this request at its June 3, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends approval of this transfer.

17. Transfer Request T-1080 A Transfer of \$310,000 from CIP R72-168 4th and E. Streets Douglas to CIP R72-162 Crow Hill Utilities and Resurfacing.

This request would transfer \$310,000 of Water Utility funds from the 4th and E. Streets Douglas CIP to the Crow Hill Utilities and Resurfacing CIP. Project costs have increased due to required water system replacement and complicated traffic management during construction hours. The proposed transfer is reallocating funds from the 4th and E. Streets Douglas CIP, an ongoing project that will retain sufficient funding to cover remaining project work.

The Public Works and Facilities Committee reviewed this request at its June 3, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends approval of this transfer.

18. Transfer Request T-1081 A Transfer of \$148,000 from CIP A50-092 Float Pond Improvements to CIP A50-112 RSA Shoulder Grading and CIP A50-001 Airport Project Design.

This request would transfer \$148,000 from the Float Pond Improvements CIP to the Airport Project Design CIP and the Runway Safety Areas Shoulder Grading CIP. Funds were previously transferred to the Float Pond Improvements project and were available for use until anticipated federal funding reimbursements were received. This transfer would return previously allocated funds to the Airport Project Design CIP and transfer funding to the new Runway Safety Areas Shoulder Grading CIP. Work in the Float Pond Improvements CIP is complete.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends approval of this transfer.

19. Transfer Request T-1082 A Transfer of \$423,461 from CIP A50-110 Gate K Culvert Reconstruction to Multiple Airport CIPs.

This request would transfer \$423,461 of airport funds from the Gate K Culvert Reconstruction CIP to multiple Airport CIPs. This transfer will allocate funds to projects that require additional funding for costs ineligible or in excess of federal funding in each CIP. Work is complete under the Gate K Culvert Reconstruction CIP.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends approval of this transfer.

20. Transfer Request T-1083 A Transfer of \$65,528 from CIP A50-092 Float Pond Improvements and CIP A50-098 Taxiway A&E Rehabilitation to CIP A50-114 Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Truck.

This request would transfer \$65,528 of previously appropriated 1% sales tax funds from the Float Pond Improvements CIP and Taxiway A&E Rehabilitation CIP to the Aircraft Rescue and Fire Fighting Truck CIP. This funding would contribute toward the local match requirement for the purchase of a new ARFF truck that will replace a truck classified as permanently out of service due to age in 2023.

This transfer of project funding is consistent with the intent of the 2012 1% Sales Tax initiative approved by voters in the October 2, 2012 municipal election and the 2017 1% Sales Tax initiative approved by voters in the October 3, 2017 municipal election for Airport Project Match.

The Airport Board reviewed this request at its June 13, 2024 meeting.

The City Manager recommends approval of this transfer.

K. Liquor/Marijuana Licenses

21. Liquor & Marijuana License Actions

These liquor and marijuana license actions are before the Assembly to either protest or waive its right to protest the license actions.

Liquor License - Renewal

Licensee: No Creek Jack Inc., d/b/a Duck Creek Market

License Type: Package Store License: #2976 Location: 9951 Stephan Richards Dr., Juneau

Licensee: Fred Meyer Stores Inc., d/b/a Fred Meyer #158

License Type: Package Store, License: #2066 Location: 8181 Glacier Hwy., Juneau Marijuana License - Renewal

Licensee: Always Redeye LLC d/b/a Stoned Salmon Farms License Type: Standard Marijuana Cultivation Facility, Licenses #:11605 Location: 2005 Anka Street, Juneau

Staff from Police, Finance, Fire, Public Works (Utilities) and Community Development Departments reviewed the above licenses and recommended the Assembly waive its right to protest these applications. Copies of the documents associated with these licenses are available in hardcopy upon request to the Clerk's Office.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly waive its right to protest the above-listed liquor and marijuana license actions.

L. PUBLIC HEARING

22. Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AI) An Ordinance Appropriating \$74,000 to the Manager for the Crisis Stabilization Capital Improvement Project; Funding Provided by a Donation from the Bartlett Regional Hospital Foundation.

This ordinance would appropriate a \$74,000 donation from the Bartlett Regional Hospital (BRH) Foundation to the Crisis Stabilization CIP. This funding provides for furniture, fixtures, and equipment at the new Aurora Behavioral Health Center.

While construction of the new facility is complete, work associated with Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design Operations and Maintenance certification remains, with final certification and project closeout expected within the next twelve months.

The Systemic Racism Review Committee reviewed this ordinance at its May 14, 2024 meeting.

The BRH Finance Committee reviewed this request at its May 10, 2024 meeting. The BRH Board of Directors and the Public Works and Facilities Committee reviewed this request at the May 28 and June 3, 2024 meetings, respectively.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly hold public testimony and adopt this ordinance.

Public Comment - None

Assembly Action

MOTION by Ms. Hughes-Skandijs to adopt Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AI) An Ordinance Appropriating \$74,000 to the Manager for the Crisis Stabilization Capital Improvement Project; Funding Provided by a Donation from the Bartlett Regional Hospital Foundation and asked for unanimous consent.

Hearing no objection, Ordinance 2023-14(b)(AI) passed by unanimous consent.

M. NEW BUSINESS

23. Hardship and Senior Citizen/Disabled Veteran/Non-Profit Late-Filed Real Property Tax Exemption Applications

There are 15 property owners that have requested the Assembly authorize the Assessor to consider a late-filed exemption for their property assessment.

The Assembly should consider each request separately and determine whether the property owner was unable to comply with the April 30 filing requirement. A.S. 29.45.030(f); CBJC 69.10.021(d). The burden of proof is upon the

property owner to show the inability to file a timely exemption request. If the Assembly decides to accept one or more late-filed exemption requests, those applications will be referred to the Assessor for review and action.

The City Manager recommends the Assembly act on each of these applications individually.

MOTION by Mr. Bryson for the Assembly to accept the following applications and forward them to the Assessor for review; for the Late File Senior & Disabled Veteran exemptions: Matthew Barnaby, Lynne Stevens, Belinda Balasta, Stephen Byers, William McGoey, Gerald Deguise, Charles Severance, Juanita Coronell, Patrizia Fiorella; for the Hardship exemption: Howard Bruce Johnson, Charles Severance, Mary Miller, Steven Snyder, Dolores Marion Healey, Mary Scoltys and asked for unanimous consent.

Hearing no objection, the motion passed by unanimous consent.

N. STAFF REPORTS

O. ASSEMBLY REPORTS

Mayor's Report

Mayor Weldon thanked the public for their patience after the death of her spouse and said she will start taking meetings again soon.

Committee and Liaison Reports

Ms. Hughes-Skandijs provided the Lands, Housing, and Economic Development report, where they talked about the manufactured home down payment assistance program and adjusting the accessory dwelling unit grant for inflation. She said they talked about Blueprint Downtown.

Mr. Bryson provided Public Works and Facilities Committee report, where they discussed the Seawalk, Crow Hill, a federal grant for charging busses, and the Floyd Dryden and Marie Drake community uses. He said a water consumer confidence report is being worked on.

Mr. Smith provided the Human Resources Committee report, which included a resolution to the Personnel Rules regarding a voluntary employee financial match and vesting schedule of said account. He said the Assembly will be meeting as the full Human Resources Committee for empowered board interviews on July 1 and 2. The Human Resources Committee forwarded the following appointments:

MOTION by Mr. Smith to appoint Matt Catterson to the Douglas Advisory Board for an unexpired term beginning immediately and ending September 30, 2024, and to a full-term beginning October 1, 2024, and ending September 30, 2027 and asked for unanimous consent. *Hearing no objection, motion passed by unanimous consent.*

MOTION by Mr. Smith to appoint Ryan O'Shaughnessy, Adrienne Scott and Andrew Williams to the Parks & Recreation Advisory Committee all to full terms beginning immediately and ending April 30, 2027, and asked for unanimous consent. *Hearing no objection, the motion passed by unanimous consent.*

MOTION by Mr. Smith to reappoint to the Historic Resources Advisory Committee, Shannon Crossley, Donald Harris and Dorene Lorenz all to full terms beginning July 1, 2024, and ending June 30, 2027, and asked for unanimous consent. *Hearing no objection, the motion passed by unanimous consent.*

Presiding Officer Reports

24. APL 2023-AA01 Hart v. Planning Commission & Huna Totem Corporation

In the summer of 2023, the Planning Commission issued a conditional use permit for a new cruise ship dock at the Juneau Subport. Ms. Hart filed a timely appeal, which was assigned to the State Office of Administrative Hearings. The Hearing Officer held the oral argument hearing on January 24, 2024. The Hearing Officer issued a draft decision to the parties. Huna Totem Corp. filed an objection and Ms. Hart filed a letter of support. A status hearing was held and the parties submitted additional briefing. The Hearing Officer is still considering that briefing.

There is no action at this time.

Mr. Palmer said the hearing officer was still working on a final decision.

P. ASSEMBLY COMMENTS & QUESTIONS

Wáahlaal Gídaag sent condolences to the friends and loved ones of Fred Parady III who passed on June 16, 2024. She spoke about Celebration, which had taken place from June 5-8.

Mr. Smith attended a Juneau School Board meeting where they did a prioritization exercise to restore programs and positions, depending on the amount funding received from the State.

Mr. Bryson attended the Bartlett Regional Hospital Board meeting, which met right before the Joint Meeting with the Assembly. He said the City Attorney Search Committee meeting is Thursday, June 20, 2024 at noon where Mr. Hargrave will provided an update on applications received.

Ms. Hughes-Skandijs said Travel Juneau is fully staffed and have been hosting travel media over the last few weeks. She said they were expressing concerns about Juneau's hotel prices and interest in being included in the short-term rental discussion. Ms. Hughes-Skandijs was able to attend Celebration this year.

Ms. Adkison wished everyone a happy Pride month. She attended a Juneau Commission on Sustainability (JCOS) meeting where they discussed various sustainability grants the city is applying for and the waste characterization study. She thanked Gretchen Kaiser and Steve Behnke for their service on JCOS and to the city.

Mr. Kelly said he attended two Planning Commission meetings since the Assembly last met and the Local Emergency Planning Committee meeting.

Mayor Weldon said she missed Celebration but was able to see videos of the toddler regalia.

Q. CONTINUATION OF PUBLIC PARTICIPATION ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION

S. SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIALS

T. ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to come before the Assembly, the meeting was adjourned at 7:58pm.

Signed: _____

Signed: _____

Elizabeth J. McEwen, Municipal Clerk Beth Weldon Mayor